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This is a reply from the response filed on behalf of the Respondent, University of Moncton in the above referenced matter. The
Applicant completely disagrees with the Respondent’s bold assertions made at paras.26-31 of its response that the application
lacks any question of public or national importance warranting the intervention of this Honourable Court,

Issues of Public or National Impertance

The Applicant submits contrary to the Respondent’s suggestion, that not only the issues raised in his application, incliding the
issue around impartiality and neutrality of the judges who presided over the disputes which are the subject matter of the
proposed appeal, and thus the issue of bias and/or reasonable apprehension of bias arising from the Motions judges’ conduct,
but also and more importantly, the unjustified and abusive/restrictive access to justice imposed upon the Applicant, which
issues as it would be demonstrated below, clearly suggest a travesty akin to miscarriage injustice, which issues are of course of
public importance.

In short, it is crystal clear from a careful listening to the audio recordings provided to this Court, which audio recordings were
before the Court of Appeal and failed to listen to despite having indicated during the hearing, with the consent of the
Respondent, that it would listen to, given the seriousness of allegation leveled against the Motions judge, which recordings
would have depicted not only the gratuitous and uncalled for sarcastic comments made by the Moticons judge, but also the
Motions judge's tone of voice, his impatience and as well as his aggressiveness at the hearing as reproduced at paras.48-56 of
the Application for Leave, which conduct, the Applicant submits was clearly both unjustified and unwarranted.

The Applicant submits, it would be apparent when listening to the audio recordings provided and/or from reading the relevant
excerpts of these audio recordings reproduced within the body of the Application for Leave, that the Motions judge has crossed
the line and that his conduct was the result of an opinion based on a prejudgment of the matters before him, including for those
matters that were clearly not on the docket before him at the time, they comments were made, which matters he later presided
over after refusing to recuse himself. The Applicant submits that had the Court of Appeal listened to the audio as it had
indicated it would, it would have concluded that the conduct of the Motions judge was unacceptable and that he proceeded with
a corrupt mind.

The Applicant submits that not only Courts have recognized the importance and usefulness of audio recordings in the in search
of truth, listening to the audio recordings in this case, was a must and necessary, in the determination of both the allegation of
bias/reasonable leveled against the Motions judge, so as to ascertain whether through his conduct, including the tone of his
voice and his demeanor, the Motions judge crossed the line and prejudged the issues before him in favour of the Respondent.
This Court will certainly agree that determination of a charge of bias or reasonable could not have been made simply by
reviewing the reasons or any transcript as the Court of Appeal had purported to have in the case under consideration

The Applicant submits that the Court of Appeal’s failure to review the audio recording, and therefore its decision to ignore the
evidence adduced (audio recordings), would of course amount not only to substantial error of law, but it would also be fatal to
the Court of Appeal judgment. The Applicant submits that this type of error alone would certainly warrant the intervention of
this Honourable Court. The Applicant further submits that the scale of the Jjudges’ tasks must not cause them to lose sight of
the fact that the rules of natural justice must always be observed and that their conduct during hearings and applications for
protection, must, at all times, be irreproachable and objective. It goes without saying, that the most basic courtesy and politeness
are de rigueur.

The Applicant submits, there is no place for intimidation, contempt, and offensive innuendo, nor for harshness or inappropriate
language from a presiding judge or presiding judges. This exactly what the Right Honourable Mr. Justice Fauteux wrote in the
Livre du magistrat ["a book for judges"], “[TRANSLATION]

The judge will ensure the climate necessary for the operation of justice by his mederation, his discipline and his courtesy
in his relations with counsel, the parties and the witnesses.” (The Right Honourable Gérald Fauteux, Le livre du magistraf,
Minister of Supply and Services Canada, 1980, at page 49).

The Applicant submits that procedural fairness requires presiding judges to conduct hearings in an objective, moderate,
irreproachable manner, with politeness and basic courtesy, and it cannot be said that this is not what occurred here based on
the facts disclosed by the audio recordings, as demonstrated by the excerpts of the audio recordings, which is submitted speak
volume and confirm the allegation of bias/reasonable apprehension of bias made against the Motions judge, but they also
demonstrate why the Motions judge ought to have recused himself from presiding over a matter or matters he had already pre-
Jjudged and and/or opined on, despite not before him at the time.



10.

The Applicant submits, contrary to the Respondent’ submission, the conduct complained about clearly warrants the intervention
of this Court. It is not a surprise that the Respondent had not even attempted to address this reality in its response to the
application as there is no dispute even from the Respondent that the Motions judge raised his voice in an intemperate manner
or about anything the Applicant had alleged occurred in this case. It would appear from listening to the audio recordings that
the Motions judge was very frustrated supposedly by his ego was in line with the serious allegation of bias levelled against him
and the request that he recuses himself from hearing any of the matters assigned to him.

The Applicant submits that if this Court carefully reviews of the exchanges during the hearings between him and the Motions
judge, which exchanges the Court of Appeal had confirmed it will review by listening to the audio recordings in order to
determine both the demeanor and the tone of the voice of the presiding Motions Jjudge, and failed to do so, this Court will not
only certainly, as a reasonable person would, conclude that Motions judge had crossed the line as an impartial adjudicator, but
also prevented the applicant from having a fair hearing where he could fuily present his case. See (Guermache v. Canada
(Minister of Citizenship and Immigration)1, 2004 ¥C 870 (CanLIl) at para.13, Quirez Mendez v. Canada (Citizenship and
Immigration)2 2011 FC 1150, (CanLIl), (Farkas v. Canada (Minister of Citizenship and Immigration)3, [2001] E.C.J. No.
356 atpara. 8 (F.C.T.D.) (QL}, 2001 FCT 190 (F.C.T.D.); Del Castiliv v. Canada (Minister of Employntent and Immigration)
4(1994), 79 F.T.R. 207 at para. 24 (F.C.T.D.), [1994] F.C.J. No. 538 (F.C.T.D.) (QI).

Conclusion:

11.

12.

13.

14,

15.

The Applicant submits that upon reading and listening the relevant excerpts of the audio recordings, provided to the Court, this
Court can only conclude that the presiding Motions judge Jost control of his demeanor by raising his voice and shouting in an
licant. The A

angry and sarcastic and demeaning tone of voice in attempt to intimidate the A licant submits this is clear
indication that he lost his temper with the Applicant. Consequently, a reasonable observer in the hearing room would likely

think that the presiding judge was angry, and in a state of mind apainst the Applicant, a lay litigant.

The Applicant further submits that if a judge is angry and shouts at a lawyer, or at lay litigant appearing before him or her, as
it appears to be what occurred in the present case, a reasonable person would have a reasonable apprehension that the judge
was biased against that litigant or lawyer’s case.

The Applicant submits that not only his ability to have a fair and impartial hearing before Courts below was not only
compromised by the Motions judge’s refusal to recuse himself, based on the comments he made on a matter that was not before
him and was latter assigned to him, but more importantly, by the Court of Appeal’s faiture to Hsten to the audio recordings to
ascertain both the Motions judge’s tone of voice and demeanor, despite confirming during the hearing of the appeal that it will
do so.

The Applicant submits that all of this clearly suggests that there had been an injustice in the present case. As such a reasonable
person informed of all these circumstances would conclude that the Board would more likely than not, not decide the matter
fairly. Contrary to the Respondent’s suggestion, all of the above warrants the intervention of this Court, so as to avoid further
miscarriage of justice and restore trust in the administration of justice in the province of New Brunswick.

Summary Judgment — Limitation Period

The Applicant submits that though a finding of apprehension of bias should be sufficient to vitiate the entire proceedings
conducted in the Courts below, the issue of the limitation period for Charter claims and as well as the inconsistencies with and
across jurisdiction also raise issues of public interest as it relates to both the administration of justice and the conduet of
presiding judges. As they depict the lower Courts’ misinterpretation of the judgment of this Court in Kingstreet Investment v,
New Brunswick (Finance) Canlii 2007 SCCI, which judgment was reconfirmed in Ravadahi v. Saskatchewan, 2009 SCC 7.
stood from the proposition that the limitation period suggested by this Court for an action based on the Charter was 6 years.
Specifically Kingstreet supra suggests the following at para.59:

59. My view is that claims such as the present may be subject to an applicable limitation period. The New Brunswick

limitation period of Action provide that:
9. No other action shall be commenced but within six years after the cause of action arose

| See (Guermache v. Canada (Minister of Citizenship and Immigration), 2004 FC 870 (CanLI]) at para.13

2 Quirez Mendez v. Canada (Citizenship and Immigration) 2011 FC 1150, (CanLlIl),

3 (Farkas v. Canada (Minister of Citizenship and Inunigration), [2001] F.C.J. No. 356 at para. § (F.C.T.D.) (QL), 2001 FCT 190 (F.C.T.D.};

4 Del Castillo v. Canada (Minister of Employment and Immigration) (1994), 79 F.T.R. 207 at para. 24 (F.C.T.D.), [1994] F.C.J. No. 538 (F.C.T.D.} (QL)).




i6. The Applicant submits that this finding that the limitation in the case under consideration is now 2 years, is consistent with the
finding of the PEI Courts in Ayangma v. Eastern School Board5 2000 PESCAD 12, which decision referred to this Court’s
ruling in Kingstreet and Ravrdaahl supra, and was recently affirmed by the Court PEI of Appeal in Ayangma v. Canada
Infoway Inc. 2017 PECA 13 at para, 51-52:

{511 A claim must be comumenced within six years from the date that the cause of action arose (Statute of Limitations, R.S P.E.L
1988, Cap. 5-7, s-5. 2(1)(g)). Two Supreme Court of Canada cases have settled the previous uncertainty on the guestion of
applicability of general statutory limitations to Charter claims for in personam remedies. Where the cause of action arose outside the
limitation period, it was held to be statute barred (Kingstreat Investments Lid, v. New Brunswick (Finance), 2007 SCC 1, paras.59-
61, Ravadahl v. Saskatchewan, 2009 SCC 7, at para.17; applied by this Court in Kefly, supra.)

{52] The appellant’s statement of claim pleads that his cause of action arose on July 7, 2005. Since the six-year limitation period set
out in £.2(1)(g) of the Stature of Limitations is applicable, the appellant's claims commenced over ten years later, on July 21, 2015, are
out of time and statute barred.

17. The Applicant submits that the mere fact that the Stafute of Limitations may have changed in New Brunswick, in 2015 is not

sufficient and/or cannot and should not alter the already settled law as to the limitation period for Charter claims. The common
law does not allow for two sets of law dealing with the same type claims (Charter claims) ~ One set of law_for New Brunswick
with a limitation period of two (2) years and angther set of law for the rest of Canada, with a limitation period of six (6 vears

C. Duty to Consider All the Pleadings and the Evidence Adduced by The Parties

18. The Applicant submits that, in any event, it is also clear that the Motions judge also failed to carry out his duty as required by
law and in particular Rule 22 when he systemically ignored paras.47. 48, 50. 52, 55 and 36 of the Statement of Claim attached
to this Reply, which Statement of Claim unambiguously showed some later dates than the cut-off chosen by the Motions judge
which date was and blindly accepted by the Court of Appeal as the appropriate cut-off date when the Motions judge believed
the time started to run for the Applicant, and so did the Court of Appeal, when it failed to review the audio recordings of the
proceedings before the Motions judge to ascertain the conduct of the Motions judge whom he alleged had crossed the line .

19. The Applicant submits that in reaching the decision that the action was statute barred, the Motions judge failed to consider all
the pleadings and the evidence adduced by the parties, consistent with the jurisprudence set by the New Brunswick Court of
Appeal in Dupuis v. City of Moncton6, 2005 NBCA 47 (CanLlIl), as to the applicability of Rule 22 when the Court stated:

(17]

Since Rule 22 applies to all cases, the motion judge had a duty to consider the pleadings and the evidence adduced
by the parties on the motion for summary judgment in order t¢ determine whether there remained an unresolved
question of fact that required a trial: Caissie v. Sénéchal Estate et al. (2001), 2001 NBCA 35 (CanLI1), 237 N.B.R.
(2d) 232 (C.A.), Cannon v. Lange et al. (1998), 1998 CanL1I 12248 (NB CA), 203 N.B.R. (2d) 121 (C.A.). See, as
well, Dubé v. Dionne et al. (1998), 1998 CanLIf 12207 {(NB CA), 201 N.B.R. (2d) 387 (C.A.).

20. Dupuis supra, at para.19 not also stands from the proposition that;

[19]

The motion judge in this case examined the pleadings. He also considered the affidavit of Maurice Surette, the Assistant
Electrical Supervisor for the City of Moncton, with attachments; the affidavit of Sharon Dupuis with attachments, and
the affidavit of Brian Murphy with attachments. After an examination of the record and hearing the argument on the
motion, he was left with no doubt as to what the court’s judgment would be if the matter proceeded to trial.

but also under - Limitation of Action Defence that:

[20]

Whenever a limitation provision is open to imuliiple reasonable interpretations, the one least inimical to the plaintiff must
be favoured: para. 173 Kenmont Management Inc. v. Saint John Port Autherity et al. (2002), 2002 NBCA 11 {CanLI]),

248 N.B.R. (2d) 1 (C.A.). However, in this case the interpretation that the motion judge gave to the Hmitation provision
is the only interpretation that it can reasonably bear.

5 Apangma v. Eastern School Board 2000 PESCAD 12
6 Dupuis v. City of Moncron, 2005 NBCA 47 (CanLI),

5



21.

22,

The case at bar, is another example of departure from well settled law set by the New Brunswick Court of Appeal in Whelton
v. Mercier et al7 2004 NBCA 83, which stands from the following proposition under “Failure to file and serve an Affidavit
of Documents” as it was the case here:

[26] The delivery of an affidavit compliant with Rule 31.03¢4) should lead to the disclosure of every docutnent related to a
mattet in issue. Armed with this affidavit, the adverse party can insist that documents of interest fo him or her be produced.
Through production of those documents, he or she can acquire a thorough understanding of the case. An Affidavit of
Documents that complies with the Rules of Court is generally indispensable in uncovering the truth. This is particularly
s in cases such as the present, where the answers to controversial questions lie deep within documents held exclusively
by one party. In cases of this nature, motions for summary judgment should, as z seneral rule. be dismissed with costs if

the moving party has not complied with the requirements of Rule 31.

The Applicant submits it is clear from a careful review of the Statement of Claim attached to this Reply, that the Motions judge
erred in law and in fact in not choosing the limitation period which was the least inimical to the Applicant as it was required to
do by law, prior to concluding that the Applicant’s action was time barred. The Applicant submits this is substantial error
warranting the intervention of this Court as such decision amounts to an injustice because it put an end to the Applicant’s action
and denies him his day in Court,

Conclusion

23,

It therefore follows that the Courts below may have also erred in law in applying the new Limitations of Actions Act 1o the facts
of this case in deciding that the action, which was based on the events, which arose in 2013-2014, was statute barred.

D. Restriction of Access fo Justice

24,

25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

In Hryniak v. Mauldin, 2014 SCC 7 (CanLII), [2014] 1 SCR 87, KARAKATSANIS J -, writing for this Court, recognized at para,
1 the importance of ensuring access to justice which is what the Applicant is complaining about in the present, when she stated

that:
Ensuring access to justice is the greatest challenge 1o the mile of law in Canada today. Trials have become increasingly expensive and
protracted. Most Canadians cannot afford to sue when they are wronged or defend themselves when they are sued, and cannot afford to go to
trial. Without an effective and accessible means of enforcing rights, the mile of law is threatened, Without public adjudication of eivil cases, the
development of the common law is stunted

The Applicant submits that this ordeal is nothing but a travesty full of abuse and misuse of the power entrusted on a judge of
the Court, given the fact that the decision to bar the Applicant’s access to justice was simply to protect the Respondent, without
any evidence that it was willfully attacked, harassed or annoved by the Applicant. in any shape or form.

There is no evidence before this Court, including in the decision under attack which could form the basis of the drastic restriction
imposed on the Applicant restricting his access to the Courts in New Brunswick Applicant who was simply on the evidence
before the Court, seeking an impartial forum to right the wrongs perpetrated against him by the Respondent. It is clear from the
evidence before this Court, including the evidence arising from two decisions under consideration by this Court (SCC 300928
and 30931), and as well as the panoply of decisions rendered in the PEI Courts from which such a drastic measure could have
legally been justified against the Applicant, given that the PEI Courts have failed to do so in several occasions.

A decision to bar someone from the Court or restrict his access to the Courts cannot be made in a vacuum or be based either
on a previous decision which had been vacated by a higher court and thus no longer fegally sound or simply because an
individual is pursuing his constitutional rights to right the wrongs perpetrated against him over 3 decades.

As previously stated, this case is nothing, but a travesty and an injustice perpetrated against the Applicant at all level of the
judicial system, which travesty on itself would raise an issue of public interest involving a blatant and abusive restriction of a
citizen access to the Court. This is clearly not what the law was intended to serve as the alleged conduct clearly defeats the
purpose of the law.

The Applicant submits that to restrict a citizen’s access to justice would require more than two decisions from the same
judge who was asked to recuse himself and refused to do so, and let alone be based from a judgment which had been
vacated by a higher court. in another jurisdiction, where the Courts had been unable to declare the Applicant “vexatious
litigant” over more than two decades of litigations involving more than 150 decisions.

7 Whelton v. Mercier et al 2004 NBCA 83



30. The Applicant submits that not only the decision under attack fails to meet the threshold for declaring someone “vexatious

31l

litigant” but it is also inconsistent with both Ayangma v. Attorney General supra, and the decision of the Alberta Court of
Appeal which set out at para.38 relying on 644036 Alberta Ltd v Morbank Financial Inc2014 ABQOB 681 at paras 51-97, 26
Alta LR (6th) 153, litigation®, the difference between a vexatious litigation and a vexatious litigant.

The Applicant submits that while conducting a vexatious proceeding, the remedy is sanctioned by costs, declaring someone
vexatious litigant, which is more drastic and involves more, including harassment and annoyance of the other party, which
there is no evidence for before this Court and was none were before the Courts below, is sanctioned by a restriction to access
to the Courts, which remedy is more such drastic and the litigant is by the same token declared “vexatious litigant” which is
clear not the case here.

Overall Conclusion

32.

33.

34.

Though the Applicant does not submit that there was actual bias. Rather, he nonetheless submits that the tone of the voice and
the demeanor of the Motions judge, including his refusal to recuse himself and as well as the sarcastic comments he made about
the Applicant’s qualifications provide a reasonable basis for the appearance of bias. The tone and temper of the Motions judge
and as well as the manner he conducted the hearings and the comments would suggest unfairness to an impartial observer, and
so would the Court of Appeal’s failure to review the audio recording the ascertain same and arriving at the conclusion that the
was not bias or reasonable apprehension of bias arising from the Motions judge’s overall conduct. Referencing the Supreme
Court of Canada judgment in R. v. S.(D.)8, 1997 CanLlI 324 (SCC ), [1997] 3 S.C.R. 484, the Applicant submits that the words
and actions of a the Arbitrator, that of the Applications Jjudge and as well as the conduct of the appeal create an appearance of
unfairness. For the justice system to have “the respect and confidence of its society ... fairness and impartiality must be both
subjectively present and objectively demonstrated to the informed and reasonable observer.” The Applicant submits that the
overall conducted of the Courts below is nothing but a travesty akin to a miscarriage of justice.

The Applicant further submits that justice must not only be done, but also be seen to be done. “This standard of fairness
requires that a court hold its hearings in a serene manner. without bias or appearance of bias. allowing each party the opportunity
to fully and adequately present his or her case,” relying on R. v. Roy?9, (2002), 2002 Canl.11 41133 (QC CA), 167 C.C.C. (3d)
203 (Que. C.A.) at p. 208, this is not what occurred here. While no trials/hearings or appeals are perfect, judges’ conduct
should not devolve, as here, into condescension, mockery or ridicule of a party. and in this case the Applicant, a lay litigant,
such that a reasonably informed observer would conclude the trial or hearing was conducted unfairly, it results in reversible
error.

The Applicant submits that failure by the Court of Appeal to listen to the audio recording despite having indicated that it will
to do so, and therefore ignoring this crucial evidence, and reaching a conclusion that there was no evidence of reasonable
apprehension of bias, arising from the Motions judge’s tone of voice and his demeanor as alleged, is not only flawed and
problematic as it illustrates a general prejudice towards the Applicant, but it is also unjudicial and fatal to the Court of Appeal’s
judgment. The Plaintiff resubmits that this a travesty and a miscarriage of justice that warrants the intervention of this Court so
as to restore trust. in the administration of justice in the province of New Brunswick.

ALL OF THIS IS RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED this 25% day of February 2020.

NOEL AYANGMA, Applikant
75 Cortland Street
Charlottetown, PE C1E 1T4
Tel: 902-628-7934
noelayngma(@yahoo.ca

8 R v. S.(D.), 1997 CanLIl 324 (SCC), [1997] 3 S.C.R. 484,
9 R. v. Roy, (2002), 2002 CanLII 41133 (QC CA), 167 C.C.C. (3d) 203 (Que. C.A.)
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AETEENGAGEE CONTRE

UNE DEFENCE DANS CETTE
avacat du Nouveay-
présenter devraz rédlger un
Iz forme prescrite par fes
fier au demandeyr gy 3 son
i-dessous et la dépaser au

it de dépot de $5¢ at

! YR T i
such servica, ! > - |
+
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YOUR ABSENCE.

YOU ARE ADVISED THAT :

interest, insert tha following notice:

court to have the action dismissed.

DRy & e

IF YOU FAILED TO DO SO, you may he deemed to have
7+~ admitted any claim made-against-yau, and withoUt further ormulé \
«...| DOtce to you, JUDGMENT MAY BE GIVEN AGAINSTYOU IN | safis autredvis, JUGEMENT PFOURRA ETRE RENDY

(a) you are entitled to issue documents and present
evidence in the proceeding in English or French or both;

{b) the ptaintiff intends to praceed in the English, language; |............ ; at.
Aand . - L s e i e e o e .

(¢} your Statement of Defance must indicate the language

in which you intend to proceed. Where the claim is for a objet la perception d’une somme déterminée ou le
liquidated demand or to recover 3 debt, with or without recouvrement d'une créance avec ou sans intéréts,

- _'_r}i_]S_NQ_@'{fij_s sigﬁdEWr the Couirt bf Quéen's” de laReine par.
o-Bench byt ﬂﬁﬂ_ﬁ,}m S rrlegtie ) yrema

CONTRE VOUS EN VOTRE ABSENCE.

SACHEZ QUE :

en anglais ou dans les deux langues;

b} le demandeur a Uintention d’utiliser la fangue .,

c} Véxposé de votre défense doit indiquer fa langue

LT Rt mamat v

ajouter le paragraphe sulvant :

a}vous avez le droit dans la présente instance, d'émettre |
des documents et de présenter votra preuve en frangals,

vous avez I'intention d'utiliser. Si la demande a pour

Si, dans le délai accordé pour la signification et le dépét
IF YOU PAY THE PLAINTIEF or the plaintiff's lawyer tha de 'exposé de votre défense, VOUS PAYEZ AU
amount of the plaintiff’s claim, together with the sum of
$100 for the plaintiff's costs, within the time you are

required to serve and file your Statement of Defence, ,
further proceedings will be stayed or you may apply to the | Paction. )

DEMANDEUR ou 4 son avocat fe montant qu'il réclame,
plus $100 pour couvrir ses frais, il y aura suspension.de
Finstance ou vous pourrez demander § la cour de rejeterwk

CET AVIS est signé et scellé au nom de la Cour du Banc

S1 VOUS OMETTEZ DE LE FAIRE vous porrez 80re rémyi | ..
"avir adriis Tolite demanda formulée contre vous et,

.....

que

&

e
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o .
Addrass of court offi & &
Palats de Justice Mon AR

145 Assumption Blvd, Qg?‘aﬂ W
P.0. Box 5001 *
Moncton N8 £1C8R3

DATED this 26" a4y 6F May 2017 ="~ "

TQ:  University of Moncton
..418 Antonine Maillet Avenue ...

Moncton, New Brunswick

E1A 3E9 s e e

e —eslarCours{greffigr) s

Adresse du greffe
Moncton Law Courts
145 Blvd Assumption
P.0. Box 5001
Moncton NB E2C 8R3

Datée du........jourde ..., a0

A Université de Moncton
118 Avenue Antonine Maillet .

o T o T Mancton, NotvEat Brinswick T
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CLATM

[1]  The Plaintiff claims damages including general, special and punitive damages

‘against the Defendant, the University of Moncton {Moncton Campus), arising from
(@) @ series of willful and/or negligent misrepresentations and deceit by the
Defendant arising from the series of breaches of various Articles of the Collective

Agreement dealing with both the discrimination clause and Fhe conduct of selection

process, including Articles 4.04, 14.03, 14.16.10 (b) %o the Defendant's willful

and/or negligent misrepresentations arising from (i) the flawed and bad faith

interpretation of the minimum criteria published (i) the flawed inter pr'e‘fctﬁdn of

the successful Candldﬂ'i‘es _gualifications for the position Human Resource °

Management Professor mcfudmg her education, frummg and experience/expertise
{iii) the flawed and bad faith assessment of the Plaintiff's qualifications including
his education, training and experience/expertise as they relates to the minimum

stated criteria published by the Defendant.

[2] The Plaintiff also claims against the Defendant, pursuant to 5.24(1) of the
Charter, the same type of heads of damages referred to at para.l noted above for
arising from the Defendant's deliberate/wilful failure not only to deny him the

oppartunity fo pursue gaining employment as a full time professor in the province

“of New Brunswick contrary to section 6(2) of the Charter {(Mability Rights) but

also for its refusal to recognize one of his areas of expertise.

[3]  The Plaintiff also claims costs of the proceeding.
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(@) The Plaintiff :

[4]  The Plaintiff lives and has been living af all material times in Charlottetown,

Prince Edward Tsland, He was also at all material times and is presently a "Chargé

-de . .cours™ -at -the University of Moncion; Moncton: Campus,- -Facilty --of

Administration in Depariment of Administration, feaching one or Two courses per

day and per semester since 2010.

[5] The Plaintiff is a Canadian Citizen and a person of colour who immigrated

from Cameraon-Central Africa, in 1985, was at all material timés 59 years old. He

is now aged 63,

[6]- The basis for the Plaintiff's trearment as a “Chargé de cours"-is the PaD in

- BUSInass~A&ﬁ1ih15’rra’r10n~—In—The—cour‘Se -of~ educcn‘mn fmmmg,—fhe Pimm‘rff *roark

i r__.}

four (4) courses m hnman resource-fmanagement: Thr'ee (3) at the Masters' level

. MBA (Per:sonnei-Managemen’r-Jndusfmuf Managemenf and——Human Rasource~ R RRIRTET

s R

L1

o IO s N 1

T T A R LI N S TR T W TRV aha ]

Managemenf) an ohe at the PhD lavei (Organlza’nonal Behavuour)

[71  The Plaintiff states that he always had very good evaluations for.alf courses

he had taught as a "Chargé de cours” since 2010 and that he had af all material

times extensive pedagogical experience, close to 28 years, including at the

university level gained as a “Chargé de cours” with the Defendant since 2010,
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(b) The Defendant, the University of Moncton

[B]  The Plaintiff states the Defendant operates in a unionized environment with

two separate entities of the same union without a bridge between the two entities:

one for permanent professors and librarians and the second one for the "Chargés

de cours” and others,

[?] The Plaintiff further states that all material times he belonged to the

second unit of the union.

{10] The Plaintiff states that the De; endant, the University of Moncton, was
created in 1963, Since its creation, it has becotme the single most important centre

for social, cultural and economic development of New Brunswick's Acadian

population.

[11] The Plaintiff states that the Defendant was  established
under The Université de Moncton Act, and is an "employer” within the meaning of

subsection I(1) of the Industrial Relations Act, RSN.B. 1873, ¢ T-4,

[12] The Defendant has three constituent campuses in Moncton, Edmundston and

"Shippagan; it is Canada's largest campus amengst its three (3) campuses, It is also

Canada’s largest French-language. university outside Quebec and has awarded more

than 82, 000 degrees.
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[13] The Defendant offers 175 sn‘udy progmms mc[udmg 37 at, fhe [aster’s

i I,—-ww-]:
4
T

e degree. ic—:.vei dhd 7 at Fhe doctorate level. Fields of studies include qdmmls‘rrqhon
arts, education engineering, forestry, law, nursing, nutrition, psychology, Sciences,

social werk and many more with 3Q research centers, chairs and institutes.

[14] .The Defendant’s student population originates mainly from New Brunswick
] but also frem almost all countries of ’rhe Fruncophome mfama'honal " The
befendant benefits from many exchange progmms and instifutional agreements

supporting student mobility af the international level Numerous international

internships are made available to s‘rudenfs every year

prmmir e .. - . -
— b b e e

offer international students the opportunity to werk and study at the masters
level, With one of lowest faculty-student ratios in the country, exchanges between

the professors and students and ovamEE quality of feqr*nmg are enhcmced The, 5000

[ [15] Th:_a Defendant is ohe of the few francophone universities in Canada that

i

(R

AdoT T asTuden’rs enroﬂed aT The Dgfendam‘_ Umversﬁy beneﬁ‘l‘~~from - nersmanzed

[« Teachmg shfie w:‘rh qualn‘y that ¢ ccm cniy be prov:ded ufT ; -r-r;e;irum»mzed umversxfy

‘_"134_‘_..'_1..-_. — - (c) e F‘IEE(HQ"‘OH - Tempomﬂv bas:s (ona vear-_.,confmof)—fhe—vHum&;—Ee—;ual:c'c;
i "Mdndgement Professor Pasition in 2013, :

[ [16] The Plaintiff states that as a result of the Human Resource Management

_ Professor, Dr. Naji Abdelhadi's (PhD) departure in 2013, from the Depariment of
Ad - o .. -Administration and the Faculty of Adiinistration: the Defendant decided to fﬁi on

a temporally basis, the permanent position held by Dr. Naji Abdelhadi (PhD),
pursuant to Article 14.05 of the Collective Agreement of the Unit L.
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[17]  The Plaintiff states that Article 14.05 allows the filling a position on a
temporally basis, without following the normal process stipulated af Article 14.12

of the same Collective Agreement.

(18] The Plaintiff further states that though already in the employ of the
Defendant and the Depariment of Administration, and meeting all the required
qualifications to be appointed for that position af qli material fi‘rnes of the fiil.:'ng
of the impugned vacant position on a temporally basis, and q member of the Unit IT

of same Union, he was'not approached nor considered for the vacant position,

[19] The Plaintiff states that the Defendant hired Ms. Stephanie Mai!ié%, n

individual that it knew or ought to have known, had only her Bachelor Degree in
Psychology obtdined in 2008 (i) was completely lacking in the required minimum
education (PhD) to teach at the university level and as well as the required
*hl*ccinfng (administration) to teach a'f the Faculty of Administration and the
bepar'fmen”r of Administration (a‘z‘j was alsa completely lacking in the required

pedagogical experience teaching at the university level or elsewhere,

[20] The Plaintiff states that hone of the facts mentioned above, including her

status at the Faculy of Administration, were known to him before June 215, 2015, (

Sedes npom
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- Staffing]

[21] The Plaintiff states that on October I, 2013, Jjust one month after the

beginning of the semester, the then Dean, Mr, Gaston Leblanc requested an

authorization to fill the same posmon ona permanen’r basis.

[22) __1_'}';'3 Plaintiff states that in T anuary 2014, the: Defendeht posted the saie -

positian to fill the position vacated by Dr, Naji Abeldahi (PhD) on a permanent
basis. The Defendant set the dateline for applying for this position fo be J. anuary

13", 2013 and struck a selection commitfee composed of all professors of fhe

Department of Ad;‘nmlsfmﬁon including Dr. Vivi Koffi.

[23] The Plaintiff submits that the minimum qualifications to teach in ahy
department, except the Law School, are sfated i in Ar'hcle 14.16,10 of the Collective

.r"“‘j]r ! 1 ]

_[24} The PEalm‘lff spaaﬁcally states ThaT the eriteria set.and publ!shed by The-—-—-

BN

_D_e.fendﬂntformfha pe:z*mr:mcamL human resour'ce. managemenf DOSI'ﬁon mﬂuc{ed +he .‘ -

—J 3O

rﬁr"““ir““ﬂr_”jijf":"ﬂ:

— TS e T T
T ey 717 FEATo T i T e e o

Mfol lowing ‘criteria: a PR in Busaness Admm:s’rraﬂon a PhD in Industrial Relations or

~a PhD in a related field, with specialization in human resources wrrh excellent

pedagagical qudlities prefer'abiy at the university level.
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[25] The Plaintiff further states that while the Defendant could have dlso
exceptionally considered candidates witheut a PhD, these candidates must have
been at all material times in +he process of obtaining a PhD in the domain within
ahe year and that in Tﬂis specific case, they must provide a.recommenduﬁon from

their thesis director indicating when the PhD would be in fact obtained.

{26} The Plaintiff states that following the announcement of the vacant position,
referred to in paras.23. 24 and 25 of his Statement of Claim, he cipplied for this
position by submitting on January 7™ 2614, a complete Dossier composed (i) a
cover leffer, a resume, certified copies of Trﬁnscrip’rs of his degrees and other

Zacumentation including-teaching licerises showing his pedagogical experience,

[27] The Plaintiff states that on March 3, 2014, he was advised by the then

Dean, Dr. Gaston Leblanc, that his candidacy for the position was not retained.

[28] The Plaintiff further states that upon receiving the letter, dated March 3
2014, he called the then Dean, Dr, Gaston Leblanc, The latter reassured him that
his candidacy was nhot retained because the education and experience/expertise of

those candidates retained qnd interviewed for the position were closely related to

. the position and that their fraining all was in the domain of human resource

menagement. The Plaintiff believed him at the time.

[29] The Plaintiff. states that it s only on or about March 27 2015, that he
bécama aware about the information provided to him by the then Dean, Dr, Gaston

Leblanc, was mislgading and false,
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purpose of completing her doctorate degr‘eg in psychology.

[30] The Plaln‘nff sfcn‘as ?haT fha mformaﬁon he came acress was from a_ ...

.‘pubhcu“fton deptcfmg bo’rh the Deqn Dr. Gaston Leblanc, of the Facul?y of

Administration and the then Assistant Director of the Department of
Administration, Dr. Vivi Koffi, also a member of the selection committee, struck fo
fill the position oh a permanent basis and the author of the selection committee

.mihutes, presenting a cheque in the amount of $5, 000 o Ms. Maillet for the

[31] The Plaintiff states that this announcement picked up his curiosity and
cused some serious concerns and doubts cbouT wha’r may have occumed ai all -
ma?ema! times during the selection processes Wthh led o appomtmenfs of Ms.

Maillet both on a femporally basis in 2013 and as well as on a parmqnen’r basis in
2014,

(32] The Plaintiff states that fo[!owmg his dlscovery referred.to af paras. 29-31.

e ol e e

T wrequsaﬁaa:f 1‘0 meef wz’rh The 'I”hen Decm of the Facu!Ty of Admm:s?ru‘r:on br. Gas“ron

...nfﬁhls STa‘remenfuowaEazm--and -—havmg'-"su_spect_eﬁ _fcmf pla.y,--he smmedmely ——j_f--?—_;“

P

L LT

. Leblanc,” This was %o obtain further clarification as. +6-;l‘h’e real. reasomfor fhe SN

[_.- —‘

TreJeTTion 6F his candxdacy 6ver that 6t candidate that obvmusly dlE! not have a PhD

at all material times of the filling of both positions on a femporally and permanent
basis. Also, o a candidate who was pursuing doctorate studies in o domain

(psycholegy) not related to the pasition being filled

[33] - The Plaintiff states that his meeting with the past Dean of the Faculty of
Administration, Mr, Gaston Leblanc, took pIace on May 12*" 2015
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[34] The Plaintiff states he knew Dr. Gaston Leblanc as his prafessor of
marketing in 1985-1986, before and after he became the Dean of the Faculty of
Administration and hed the greafest respect for him both as his professor and
Dean. He believed him when he told him that his candidacy was rejected because
the experience/expertise of those candidates retained for the interview were
directly related to the position fo be filed. The plaintiff was Heepiy disappointed
with Mr. Gaston, and his positive opinion quickly changed c;ﬁer' March 27 2015
when he %ound out that he was the person presenting the award of $5,000 1o Ms.

Maillet for the purpose of completing her doctorate in psychology.

o I38]  The Plainf#f Further states +he purpose of that meeting was to inguiry

e
’i

1

H

about the real reason for the rejection of his candidacy while reiaining at the

same time the candidacy of ‘the caﬁdidafe, Ms. Maillet. A person whom the Facutty

or the Department of Administration knew or ought to have known, on  the face of

her educational and fraining backgrounds, that she met neither the minimum

Y s .

education criteria nor the stated required experience, and was thus not qualified
— . _H—M"‘"—""—‘"‘—"—-—.

for either the position filled on the temporally or on permanent basis,
, e RS S

P fSé] The Plaintiff states that he could no -longer frust the Dean of the

partment  of  Administration, charged with the inifial screening of the
candidates. This feeling was based on the unpleasant experience and the
astonishing revelation of the fact that the candidate he had hired on two occasions

and had previously indicated fo him that she was the best candidate for the Job,

. may notso be the best and/or was not even qualified to teach at the university

level and let alone at the Faculty of Administration, because- she was nhot in the

domair. As a result of this mistrust, the entire May 2015 meeting was taped.

/_-ﬁé
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as“ron Leblanc he ot on{y com‘muad o maintain ’rhcﬂ' Ms Ma!llef was the best
candidate for the position and that her education background was in the domain,
but he alse stated among other things, that Ms. Stephanie Maillet possessed at all
material times a PhD in Organizational Behdviours and that she was the best suited
candidate as to the'stated criteria for the position. He also suggested that there
was not dfscriminaﬂo.r! in the selection process and that he would not hire.someone .

- s;fhz}éé T;ca:I-r.;i-ng was in psychology to teach a course in the Department of
Administration such a “production” and that even i he is asked to invite such a

candidate fo an in‘!’er'vfe,w he would not do so.

[38] The Plaintiff states that Dean, Dr. Leblane ironi cally did exactly what he had
suggested he would not do, inviting Ms. Maillet, whom he knew or ought to have

known had an education and training in psychology, with a simple Bachelor Degree in

Psychology cb?amed in 2008 cznd not evena Mas‘rers Dagr'e,e or a PhD De.gr'ee to .

]
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- paillet 12013 and 2014

e

== -*-‘f:’\ 139 J ~The Pl@RTiTT states Thcn‘ ot sm‘lsf;ed with any of the explanaﬁons provzdedw

I to him by the Dean, during the Ma“}T.IZ 2015 meeting. and having leﬂ with tmore

questions/cancerns than answers, regarding the rejection of his candidacy .over-
that on Ms. Maillet, in the filling of the vacant position of Professor Human
Resource Managemen? first in 2013 on a temporally basis and agam in 2014 ona
permanent basis, he filed, first level grievances, alleging both a breach of vnmous

* Sections of Collective Agreement and d:scrlmma”rmn in both posﬁrlons gwen fo Ms
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[40] The Plaintiff states that on May 27, 2015, Dean Leblanc denied his
grievances, indicating not only that the Defendant did not violate the Collective
Agrezment related to the “Chargées and Churgés de cours”, but also because the
Plaintiff grievances were not arbitral because the Plaintiff was not an employee as
stipulated in Article 2.19 of the relevant Collective Agr:eemenf, and as such the
Plaintiff was not bound by the Collective Agreement. o -

[41] The Plaintiff states ?hai’ The next day being May 28™, 2015, he filed o
'_‘__"“““"-\._______

second stage grievances.
st g e
-[42] The Plaintiff further states that notwithstanding the filing of the secand
level grievances alfeg:ng a potential breach of The Collective Agreement and foul

g\ﬁ play in the selection process and inferpretation of the minimum salecﬂon criteria; .

he continued to inquire about ?he real reasons as to why he was denied the
,ocontined to inguire 5 _denied the

b)‘ opportunity to compete for the position, the vacant human resource management
: bl

position. The canducting of in- depth searches on line and his endeavours to have qll

Y
the record straight, led him to Ms. Stepharnie Maillet's profile on or about June

L2 2015,

\-_....___

-

, 1 The Plaintiff states es that upon a cursory review of Ms. Maillet's profile, it

became apparent not only that she was not qualified for the position as suggested

_and maintained by the Defendant and in particular Dean, Dr. ", Gaston Leblanc, and

that she clearly. lacked a PhD at qll material times, but also that her area of

Leblanc.

W hot in the required domain, as indicated by Dr. Gaston

[—
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A Piqmﬂff Turfher* s’rafes cmd _astonishingly so, that the same profile ? I
.;if-j” t i En P s o v T S

. ¢ Thaf the bes;s of Ms Mculle‘rs appoln?men’rs at all material-times (in 2013

=

 —
i

and in 2014), was contrary to the Defendant's bold assertion, a simple Bachelor
Degree in Psychology and not even a Masters' degree, which Bachelor Begree she

obtained from the Univérsify of Moncﬁnn in 2008.

3 3

seco nd level grievances,

T

-second level grievance on June 3@’”",‘ 2015, he filed on the same day, a human rights
cotuplaint alleging dis&riminaﬁon on the basis of colour, race, age, national/ethnic,

in both selection processes.

- F“"‘"l,.f::l

[ [47] The Plamﬂff states Tha'r as part of the humun rights process denying all the

[45] The Plamﬁff s’rafes that on June 30"“ 2015, the Defencfan% rejected in

The Plaintiff further states that immediately following the rejection of his

FOU e e n sl e

I s '_;"'_:ﬁ%ﬁ;&jrrcfr;—;;levunf to the ﬁ!!mg of the position of Professw Hurman Resource.

a!iegaﬂons -:rhe Defendanf -diselosed. "on_""Decgmber *“18__ ”‘201!3 uddrr!ona? e —-;—

-
i
b
I

.. “Management on a parmanenf bas:s The qddl‘raonal mforma‘rlon _dzsclose.d mclude.d,

i
i i

TR e Tm e T

dated February 7™ 2014 and Déan, Dr. Gaston Leblancs recommendation, dated

! §

March 27 2014, recommending the appointiment of Ms. Maillet, to the position of

Professor, Human Resource Management on a permanent basis.

=

= 3

T T SR The Detendants minaTes of The screening process ‘used to screen hlmm out,
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[48] ‘The Plaintiff states that a review of the December '18™ 2014's letter
revealed additional material facts indicaﬁné the process and the basis for the
exclusion of his candidacy, which included the verification of whether thé Plaintiff

et the specialization in human resources and/or whether he had specialized

publication,

[49] The Plaintiff further states thet though the criteria referred to af para.48

of this Statement of Claim were not part of :rhe. criteria published by the

-Defendant as reproduced at paras.24-25 of this Statement of Claim, they were

used to screen him out and not Ms. Maillet, who clearly met neither the stated

“Hiffiimuin criteria nor the newly added criteria used to screen him out on February

7th 2014,

[50] The Plaintiff states the letter of recommendation disclosed on December
18", 2015 and dated March 27, 2014, from the Dean of the Faculty of
Adminisfmﬁrs’on, Dr. Gaston Leblanc, specifically indicated that Ms. Maillet did well
in her inferview, knowing well that it was inaceurate, based on her. mediocre

performance, scoring only 52/80 or 65%.

[51] The Plaintiff further states the Defendant, through Dr. Gaston Leblanc, also
indicated that Ms. Maillet was by reason of her training in human resources, the

best suited candidate for both the position and the Faculty's need,
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[52] The Plam?n‘f states ‘rha'r in its r-e.spcnse to his Human Rights Complaint - . ...

Decamber 18”‘ 2014 fhe DefendanT also continued to claim that Ms. Maillet ‘was
quqllf[ed for the position and that her Trammg was in the required domain and that
her doctorate was in the r'equzred field, which is in human resource management;
even though it knew or ought to have known at all material times of her

appointments that her thesis was in psychology.

[53} ”'!'P{e“l;f-aén‘riff states that on December 22™, 2016, the Commission finally
released its Report in which it Fecommended pursuant to §,19(2) of the Ac*r that
his complaint of dlscrtmma’ncn against the Defendant be dlsm:ssed with r‘egard to
any al[ega‘l'lons r‘elahve to the alleged discriminatory words that 'occurred after
July 1%, 2014. This was because the information was insufficient to demonstrate a
solid arguable case based on his race, colour, national/ethnic origin and age in so as
to pen:nif ah extension of time pursuant to 5.18(2) of the New Brunswick Human

nghts Act, and ‘rherefora recommended these allegations be dismissed as. being.
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TT54] " TRe PlanTitF States That as a. “Chqrge. de cours” Te.ac:hmg on!} one or ‘ham
course per day and per semester at all material times, and because of the secrecy
around the filling of the vacant position, he was unaware of vfhe, fact that the
Defendant had offered the vacant position to a person whom it knew or ought to
have known, did not meet any of the minimum educc?lon and training criteria
stipulated at Article 14.16.10 in in the Collective Agreement and/or those set by
the Faculfy of Admmssfmﬁon as s?aTed at pams 24 25 of ?he Sfafemenf of Clcum
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[55] The Plaintiff states that he only became first aware of some of the material
facts which gave rise to his action aéainsf the Defendant as stated in paras.1-4 of
his Statement of Claim, after he had discovered between March é?*", 2015 after
review of the announcement made by the Defendant awarding Ms. Maillet the sum

of $5000 for the purpose of completing her doctorate in psychology. Also, on June

21%, 2015, when he accessed Ms. Mdillet's profile on line, showing that the basis of
both her appointments on a temporally and permanent basis, was in fact a Bachelor

Degree in Psychoiogy obtained in 2008, from the Unwersﬁy of Moncton, which is

- neither a PhD nor even a Masters’ Degree,

[56] "The Plaintiff states he became fully aware of all the material u}‘cﬁrlé;rs_;Jhi.c:h _
led to his claim against the Defendant, including the refusal for to consider his
candidacy for reasons other than the stated or published  criteria or
quahf:cqﬂons affer he received the Defendant's response to his human r-zghts
complaint against the Defendant dated December 18" 2015, This response also |
included bath the minutes prepared by the Department of Administration on |
February 7™, 2014 and the letter of recommendation dated March 27% 2014,
recommendmg the appointment of Ms. Maillet notwithstanding her complete lack of
qualifications and her mediocre performance during the interview with a score of

65%.
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[57] The Plaintiff alleges that the Defendant denied him the opportunity to fill
on a femporally basis the position of Professor, HRM Resource Management and
the opportunity to compete for the same permanent position on a permanent basis,
confrary to Article 4.04 of the Collective Agreeme:n? and 5.6(2) of the 5.6(2) of ‘ ;’
the Charter, and by s6 doing deprived him from his constitutional right (MobllzTy
Elgh?s) To pursue a gaining livelihood in the Province of New Brunswick contrary to

$.6(2) of the Charter (Mobility Rights). ' %

[58] The Plaintiff further alleges that in order to promote the candidac:y‘ of a
candidate, Ms. Maillet, a young Acadien whom it knew or ought fo have known was
completely lacking in the minimum criteria for the position, the Defendant, engaged |5 - /)
in a series of willful/false and/or negligent mlsrepresenfaﬂons including but hot

hmr?ed To wallfulffa[se and_ negligent mzsrepresanm’rmns arising - from (i) i -

A”egﬂ?lons o R . . ) s ) o ) Ale wpeal  w T i =7 Rt il
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IRAUSTFIAl RETGTIORE did Tot possess that ?rcunmg (u) its wrih‘u! and/neghgenf
misrepresenfations of the qualifications of Ms. Maillet, including her education and
’rmining backgrounds by falsely suggesting that-she had a Doctorate in Human
Resources (Orgamzmsoncl Behaviours) when she did not: that her thesis was in the

domain of Human Resources when in fact it was; that she had a PhD in Psychology

when in fact she had a DPs which is not a PhD, (m) the wllful and negligent
" misrepresentations of the Plaintiff's education and Trammg backgrounds and

" qualifications as they relate to the minimum stated. crs?erta publ:shed
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@) Alleqations Related to the Breaches of the Co!lgci‘ive Agreement

(89] The Plaintiff alleges that the Defendant breaéhed various Articles of the

Collective Agreement dealing with both the discrimination clause and the conduct

of selection process, including articles 4.04, 14.03, 14.16.10.

[60] The Plaintiff alleges that in considering the candidacy of Ms, Maillet, a young
Acadian person, on the basis of her Bachelor Degree in Psychology obtained in
2008, and with absolutely no pedagogical experience including at the university
level, to teach at the Faculty of Administration courses that she had neither
taught-or eVen Taken herself in her Bachelor Degree in Psychology Pr‘ogr‘aa:'w'.'.rlﬁill-a
at the same ignoring the plaintiff's candidacy, notwithstanding his qualifications
and training in business administration, with a PhD in Business Admini;‘rmfion and
extensive pedagogical experience, including at the university level and the fact
that he was already in the employed, was clearly discriminatory and contrary to

Article 4,04 of the Collective Agreement,

[61] The Plaintiff specifically dlleges that even though Article 14.05 the

* Collective Agreement may have permitted an appointment without following the

normal selection process provided pursuant fo Article 14.12 of the Collective
Agreement as it ought Yo have been the case in the filling of the position on g
permanent basis, such appointments must also be made in accordance with both .
Articles 14.03 and 14.16.10 of the Collective Agreement, and that this did not

occurred in the present case,
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1621 The Plainfiff alleges that the Defendant wilfully/negligently failed to do 5o, ... . .

- as in the present case, when it deliberately and wilfully chose té appoint a

candidate whom it knew or ought to have known, completely lacked all the minimum
qualifications for the position, and thus a candidate it knew or ought to have known
her appointments would not meet the requirements under Articles 14.03 and

14.16.10, was clearly cbnfrcry to the Collective Agreement.

{63] The Plaintiff further alleges that because of the Defendant's deliberate,
wilful and/or negligent repeated breaches of the Collective agreement, he had
suffered substantial damages, including special damages for loss of income and
other heads of damdges referred at para.lof his Statement of Claim as a resulf of

the Defendant’s conduct and repeated breaches.

(&) Allegations Regarding the Allegations of Wilful/Neq!ioen?J VC’

Misrepresentations

P

|
i
i

- mssrepf*esan’red (). fhe seiecmn process. mciudmg inthe mannamf mferpr-efred-:rha»

t”“’i“ oren B e B

i
LI}
i

|
t
i
i

‘“‘ [64] “"Pfamﬂff aEEé§é§ “that fhe S'e"fendan’r wafﬂﬂy and/or neghgen‘rly ":‘? ]

-‘—requlred mmrmum crl‘rerm it hdd pﬁbhshed and had mvn‘ed qughﬂ&d cand[da+e< fo.. _

1
=

[xm[”‘“!r“l]

i

TR T S

apply (ii) the successful candidate's qualifications for the position Human Resource
Management Professor including her educdﬁon,.fmining and experience/expertise
(i) the Plaintiff's qualifications including his education, training and
e_;;(perie.nce/exper}ise, as they related to the minimum stated criteria published by

the Defendant.
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[65] The Plaintiff alleges fhm; the Defendant has committed a series of false and
wilful misrepresentations and conducted itself in the manher indicates bad faith in
the appointments of Ms. Maillef first on a temporally basis in 2013 and
subsequently in 2014, évanl though it knew or ought to have known that Ms. Maillet
not only did not have a PhD at all material times, but elso that her eduzation and
fraining was not in the required domain of the admiristration and/or industrial

relations or human resource management,

[66] The Plaintiff further alleges that in appointing Ms. Maillet first on a

temporally basis and subsequently on a permanent basis, the Defendant also knew

or ought to have known the fact that the Doctorate in Psychology, Ms. Maillet was

pursumg was hot a PhD, nor a degree that could be consrdered to be in an area

related to the position.

{é?j The Plaintiff further alleges that the mere fact the Defendant knew or
ought to have known that the candidate it was about +o appoint, was appointed on
the basis of a simple Bachelor Degree in Psychology and excluded the candidacy of
the Plaintiff who in fact had a PAD in Business Administration _cmd_ was thus, rot

only far better qualified than Ms. Maillet, but alse met the minimum criteria for

the positions, and thus met the profile and qualities of the candidate it was in fact

looking for, clearly suggests that the Defendant acted in bad faith, causing
substantial damages to the Plaintif.
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the Defendant's false/wilful/negligent misrepresentations occarred:

68.1 the first misrepresentation-occurred when the Defendant decided to
appoint Ms, Maillet on temporally basis in 2013, by completing ignoring
Articles 4.04, 14.03 and 14.16.10 of the Collective Agreemeht;

68.2 the second misrepresentation occurred when the Defendant (the
selection committee) decided to screen in Ms. Maillet on February 7',
2014, for an interview notwithstanding her clear lack of qualifications
and her failure to meet any of the minimum criteria that it itsel set
and published in January 2014, Even though it knew or ought o have
known based on her Dossier that she was clearly not qualified for the
position as there was nothing fo support that she met any of the
minimus, criteria fo the position advertised; :

68.3. the third misrepresentation occurred when the selection committee |
recommended Ms. Maillet'’s to Dean, Dr. Gaston Leblanc, for the
position after she had been screened in alongside other qualified
cendidates on February 7™, 2014 and interviewed for the position,
even though it knew or ought to have known based on her Dossier that

-she. was.clearly not.qualified for-the position. as there was nothing to

o e - 168]  The Plaintiff specifically states that the materials facts which gave: rise to ... .
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véél;-i', on the basis of criteria not published in the posting. Even though
it knew or ought to have known, based on his Dossier, that he was
clearly qualified for the position and met all the minimum criteria for
the position advertiséd and was thus better qualified than Ms. Maillet
in the area of education and training and pedagogical experience,
Jncluding experience teaching at the university level. ®
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685 the fifth misrepresentation occurred when Dr. Gaston L'eblanc also

68.6

recommended Ms. Maillet's appéintment Fo the VRER {Vice Recteur &
f'ehseignemem‘ d la recherche), Mr. Neil Boucher, on March 27t 2014,
even though it knew or ought to have known based on her Dossier that
she was clearly not qualified for the posifion as there was nothing to
Support that she met any of the minimum criteria for the position
advertised and when it suggested that the education criteria called
for those candidate who had specialization in human resources and
ignored those with PhD in Business Administration or in Industrial
Relations; )

the sixth misrepresentation occurred when Dr. Gaston Leblanc, the
then Dean of the Faculty of Administration, suggested in his letter of
recommendation dated March 27™, 2014, that Ms. Maillet did well in
her inferview when he knew or-aught to have knewh based on he
inferview scoring of Ms. Maillet of 52/80 or 65% that it was q
mediocre interview result:

68.7 the seventh misrepresentation occurred when Dr. Gaston Leblanc, Dean

68.8

of the Faculty of Administration, suggested in his letter of
recommendation dated March 27, 2014, that Mr. Maillet with g
Bachelor Degree in psychology, was better suited for the need of the
Faculty in the area of human resources;

The eighth misrepresentation also oceurred on May 12™, 2015, during
the meeting between Dean Leblanc and the Plaintiff, when he stated
that he would not hire someone with a degree in psychelogy to teach a
course such.as production and that even if he was asked fo have such a
person Fo an interview, he would refuse, knowing well that this exactly
is what the Defendant did, with his approval, when mot only the
selection committee screened in Ms. Maillet on February 7 2014,
interviewed her and recommended her to him, who in return
recomimended her fo the "VRER" on March 27, 2015;
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689 the ninth [Inisrepresentation occurred, on May 12" 2015 during the . ... - - -
meeting befween Dr. Gaston Leblanc and the Plaintiff,-when the- ‘
former continued to assert that Ms. Maillet (with her Bachelor Degree
in Psychology) was the best suited candidate for the position, that her
Training was in the domain of human resources and that she had a PhD
in Organizational Belaviours, when he. knew or ought to have known
that it was not true. .

68.10 the tenth misr’éprasenfq‘rion occurred when the "VRER" Mr. Neil
Boucher accepted Dean Leblanc's recommendation end confirmed Ms.
Maillet's appointment, effective July 15, 2015;

68.11 The eleventh misrepresentation occurred on December 18' 2015,
when the Defendant, through counsel, suggested that Ms. Ma;IIeT was
. ehaut to.obtain a doctorate degree in the required field, which was in
the human resources, when it knew or ought to have known that it was

not;
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68.12 the twelfth misrepresentation occurred on February 18“‘ 2017 when
the Defendant Thr‘ough counsel repeated that:

. Notamment, Mme Maillet . était sur-le point - -d'obtenir un
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_.-68.13. ’rhemfhlrfeen'th mlsrepresen’rqﬂon occurr'ed“wheh ?he De?e:hdam'“'“}‘?

; ._'._M“_suggesfed in"the Yiste-des membres de-[Assembiee de“” !a“F?SR" 1570 An—— ““_

NS T WGilleT Bossessed & PRD. when in fact it knew or ought fo have '
known that Ms. Maillet's doctorate is not a PhD.
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[69] The Plaintiff alleges overall as it relates to all the thirteen

misrepresentations that the Defendant knew.or ought-fo-have known or-was- Wikfullyperssmsim
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[70] The Plaintiff alleges the Defendant acted in bad fm;‘rh when it made
additional series of deliberate and wilful misrepresentations dur'mg the May 12™
2015 meef:ng with the then Dean and through counsel, in uTTer attempt to
undermine his qualifications and elevate Ms. Maillet's total lack &:f qualifications.

[71] The Plaintiff also alleges that the Defendant acted in ?bad faith when it
applied a double standard in its approach to screening candi:;icfres and when it

conducted itself in a willful manner and in particular when it wilffully sereened out

. the Plaintiff's candidacy based on criteria not pitblished in the piosﬁng and thereby

failed to- appiy same standard fo the successfu[ a candidate whom it knew or ought
to have known on the face of her Dossier and her profile, did nb‘r tneet either any
of stated and as well as unstated the criteria for the position wm‘h the intention of -
deceiving those susceptible to review its selection process and on which a

reasonable person would and did rely to his detriment. _E

[72] The Plainfiff smfes that because of the Defendant's refusa! to hire him ﬁrsT
on a temporally basis and later on a permanent basis and io Trem‘ him differently and
adversely by denying him his constitutional rights through a i-Serles_ of deliberate,
false, negligent and/or willful misrepreSenmﬁons:,"ro pursue gaiﬁfng livelihood in the
Province of New Brunswick as a full time professor, a guamnfee;'d under; 8.6(2) of the

Charter, a right not to be deprived of on the basis of aﬁy pfrohibifed grounds of

discrimination, including on the basis of his race, colour, age and national/ethnic
e d e

e

@iﬁ, he is entitled fo the heads of damages claimed at paras.fi—z of his Statement
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